
 

MINUTES 

TOWN COUNCIL WORK SESSION 

MONDAY, NOVEMBER 10, 2025 AT 5:30 PM 

     COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 150 EAST MONROE STREET  

WYTHEVILLE, VA 24382 

 

1. Persons Present: 

Mayor Beth Taylor, Vice-Mayor Candice Johnson, Councilwoman Cathy Pattison, 
Councilwoman Holly Atkins, Councilman Joseph Hand, Jr., Interim Town Manager Sherry 
Corvin, Assistant Town Manager Elaine Holeton, Town Attorney Paul Cassell, Chief 
Deputy Clerk Brandi Jones, Police Chief Joel Hash, Deputy Police Chief Bryan Bard, 
Assistant Computer Operations Manager Jeff Hooper, Police Officer Kyle Counts, Kenneth 
Rowlett, Angela Porter, Others 

Persons Absent: 

None 

2. RE: ITEMS TO BE DISCUSSED 

A. Approval of Agenda  

Mayor Taylor advised that the first item on the agenda is the Approval of Agenda, 
and this required a motion and approval by the Council. She inquired if there was a 
motion to approve the Work Session agenda.  

Motion made by Vice-Mayor Johnson, Seconded by Councilwoman Pattison. Mayor 
Taylor inquired if there was any discussion on the motion. There being none, the 
motion was approved with the following voting results, by roll call vote: Voting Yea: 
Councilman Hand, Jr., Councilwoman Pattison, Mayor Taylor, Councilwoman Atkins, 
Vice-Mayor Johnson.  

B. Discussion regarding a proposed Park Police Patrol Officer and a 
Narcotics/Tracking Dog 

Mayor Taylor advised that the next agenda item is discussion regarding a proposed 
Park Police Patrol Officer and a Narcotics/Tracking Dog. She noted that Deputy 
Police Chief Bryan Bard will give the Council additional information regarding this 
topic. Deputy Chief Bard stated that the Town is flourishing, and the quality of life that 
is offered is tied directly to the safety of the town's public spaces. He commented that 
the primary patrol areas for the proposed Law Enforcement Park Police Patrol Officer 
would include downtown Wytheville; Wytheville Recreation Center(s); Wytheville 
Visitors Center; Withers Park; Elizabeth Brown Memorial Park; Truss Bridge Park; T-
Ball Field; Homestead Historical Park; Ager Park; and, Crystal Springs Park. Deputy 
Chief Bard advised that patrols will be conducted on foot, in marked patrol vehicles, 



by police bicycles and by ATV/4-Wheelers. He stated that due to increased traffic, 
this necessitates a dedicated, visible law enforcement presence focused solely on 
the unique environment of the Town's parks, recreation areas and trails. Deputy 
Chief Bard commented that the Law Enforcement Park Police Patrol Officer and a K9 
Handler is more than just standard patrol, and that it is a commitment to community 
policing and specialized safety. He noted that this officer will serve as a key liaison, 
fostering relationships with the Recreation Department and the public. Deputy Chief 
Bard advised that the visible presence of an officer dramatically enhances general 
safety and acts as a powerful crime deterrent. He explained that they are requesting 
this, at this time, so that the Police Department can hire an additional officer to send 
to the Police Academy, which begins in January 2026, to fill the vacancy of the 
currently employed patrol officer whose position this will fill. Deputy Chief Bard stated 
that several of their officers have submitted letters of intent for this position because 
they are very interested in it and would like to see it go forward. Councilwoman Atkins 
inquired about the proposed K9 Handler position and if it is separate from the Park 
Police Patrol Officer. Deputy Chief Bard noted that the K9 Handler position would be 
assigned to the Park Police Patrol Officer. He commented that the K9 would be 
familiar with the parks and would be seen more often. Deputy Chief Bard advised that 
they are, primarily, asking for just one position. He stated that the one officer would 
be able to work a five (5) day a week schedule, based on need and the time of year. 
Deputy Chief Bard continued to discuss the potential work schedule of a Park Police 
Patrol Officer. He stated that, if there are two (2) officers, they would work 12-hour, 
alternating shifts so that the parks could be patrolled seven (7) days a week. Deputy 
Chief Bard then reviewed the benefits of having two (2) Park Police Patrol Officers 
with the Council. He explained that they would not need to request any additional 
funds in the current budget for one Park Police Patrol Officer, due to vacancies within 
the department. Deputy Chief Bard advised that the Park Police Patrol Officer 
position would need to be added in the next Fiscal Year budget. Councilman Hand 
inquired if the budget would be affected if they sent two (2) new officers to the Police 
Academy, instead of just one. Deputy Chief Bard stated that they would need to 
request a budget amendment for half a year's salary if they sent two (2) new officers 
to the Police Academy. Councilwoman Pattison inquired if a Park Police Patrol 
Officer could perform an adequate job without the assistance of a K9. Deputy Chief 
Bard explained that the K9 would be used for Narcotics detection, and that Patrol 
Officers would be calling on the K9 for traffic stops, etc. He noted that the K9 would 
not be used in just the parks, it would just be assigned to the Park Police Patrol 
Officer due to availability. Councilwoman Pattison inquired if surrounding counties are 
using tracking/drug K9s on a regular basis. Deputy Chief Bard stated that he does 
not believe they are used for tracking on a regular basis. Discussion was held 
regarding the uses and benefits of having a Narcotics/Tracking K9 and the difficulty 
they have experienced with trying to get an available K9 for situations in the past. 
Vice-Mayor Johnson inquired of Deputy Chief Bard as to whether the Police 
Department has contacted the National Police Dog Foundation to see if the Town is 
eligible to apply for grants. Deputy Chief Bard stated that they have not. Vice-Mayor 
Johnson commented that the Foundation has highly trained veterinarians who 
sometimes offer discounted services for Police K9s, and that they also give out grant 
funding. She noted that Richlands, Dickinson County and Pulaski County have 
participated in the National Police Dog Foundation programs. Vice-Mayor Johnson 



inquired if Deputy Chief Bard would consider applying for grants. Deputy Chief Bard 
stated that he would definitely consider applying for grants. Vice-Mayor Johnson 
inquired if the K9 would be trained only for narcotics detection, or would it be trained 
for something else, as well. Deputy Chief Bard noted that the K9 would be trained for 
narcotics detection and tracking. He commented that the Department’s primary goal 
is to obtain a K9, free of charge. Deputy Chief Bard explained that many Law 
Enforcement Agencies try to find dogs in shelters that are working, driven dogs. He 
stated that the K9 and handler training would not cost anything, because the Town 
would be partnering with the Virginia State Police and its K9 Training Program. 
Deputy Chief Bard advised that the initial, up-front cost would be for the K9 
transportation system, in-car kennel, home kennel, veterinarian care, food and the 
association dues, which he thinks would cost around $25,000 for the first year. He 
commented that getting a K9 would not take place in the current budget year, 
because the new officers will first need to go through the Academy. Deputy Chief 
Bard stated that this could be discussed for the next budget year in the Department’s 
Capital Improvements Plan. Discussion was held regarding possible grant 
opportunities the Town could apply for to assist with the K9 and moving forward with 
the Law Enforcement Park Patrol Police Officer and a possible K9 Handler. 

A motion was made by Councilman Hand, Jr. and seconded by Councilwoman 
Pattison to approve moving forward to allow the Wytheville Police Department to 
send an officer to the Academy in January 2026 with the intent that, in the end, this 
officer is going to be a K9 Unit trained officer and not just a street patrol officer, but, 
also a K9 Unit/Park Officer. Vice-Mayor Johnson inquired if this position would be a 
K9 Handler and not a Park Police Officer. Councilman Hand stated that one person is 
going to do the same thing. Vice-Mayor Johnson inquired if Deputy Chief Bard could 
clarify the position. Chief Deputy Bard advised that the Park Patrol Officer will be 
assigned the K9, however, the person that the department is hiring is not going to be 
that person, because it is going to be one of the department’s seasoned officers. He 
stated that five (5) of the department’s officers have stated that they would like to be 
considered for the new position. Vice-Mayor Johnson reiterated what Chief Deputy 
Bard is considering regarding a new hire and the new position. Discussion continued 
regarding Deputy Chief Bard’s request. Vice-Mayor Johnson requested that the 
motion be clarified. Councilman Hand advised that his motion was to approve moving 
forward to allow the Wytheville Police Department to send an officer to the Academy 
in January 2026 with the intent that, in the end, this officer is going to be a K9 Unit 
trained officer and not just a street patrol officer, but, also a K9 Unit/Park Officer. 
Mayor Taylor inquired if there was any further discussion on the motion. There being 
none, the motion was approved with the following voting results, by roll call vote: 
Voting Yea: Councilman Hand, Jr., Councilwoman Pattison, Mayor Taylor, 
Councilwoman Atkins, Vice-Mayor Johnson.  

3. RE: ADJOURNMENT  

There being no further business to be discussed, the Work Session was adjourned. (6:01 
p.m.)  



                 
       Sherry G. Corvin, Interim Town Manager 
 

 

          
Brandi N. Jones, Chief Deputy Clerk 


